
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
NINTH SESSION 
0 fficial Records 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 12: 

Page 

Heporl of the Economic and Social C(Juncil (chapter:' 
1V and V) (contiuutd)... . , ..... , ... , ........... , . 227 

Chairman: Mr. Jiii NOSEK (Czechoslovakia). 

AGENDA ITEM 12 

Report of the Economic and Social Council (chap
ters IY and V) (A/2686, A/C.3/573) (con· 
tinned) 

GENERAL DEBATE (continued) 

L The CHAIRMAN stated that some delegations 
had expressed a wish to refer, under item 12 of the 
General Assembly's agenda, to problems connected with 
the subjects discussed in chapters IV and V of the report 
of the Economic and Social Council ( A/2686),' but not 
specifically mentioned therein. He had therefore de
dderl not to rule out of order the statements made by 
the representatives of the Netherlands and the uSSR 
at the 586th meeting. However, as there were not many 
more meetings and it was difficult to dedde whether 
problems that were not specifically mentioned in chapters 
IV and V of the report should be discussed or not. he 
invited all representatives who wished to speak on item 
12 of the General Assembly's agenda to limit their re
marks strictly to the questions dealt with in chapters 
IV and V. 

;ur. NUJle$ (Costa Rica) took the Chair. 

2. ~Irs. FOMINA (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub· 
lies) said that ~he had some observations to make on 
chapter V1 section XI. of the Economic and Social 
Council's report ( A/2686). Tbe USSR delegation 
thought there were gaps in the work of the Commission 
on the Status of Women~ particularly in the matters of 
health services1 equal pay for equal work and discrimina
tion against women. Although the USSR had signed 
and ratified the Convention on the Political Rights of 
Women (General Assembly resolution 640 (VI!), 
annex), other countries had not. The USSR delegation 
approved of the work the Commission on the Status of 
Women had done with regard to the question of educa· 
tiona! opportunities for women, but felt that the Com· 
mission had not given sufficient attention to the status 
of women in the Trust and Non~Sel£-Governing Terri~ 
tories, It had considf'red certain questions connected 
with economic opportunities for women, including the 
question of part-time work for women and the situlltion 

1 OJ,?i.:ia! Rfcord:; of tile General Assembly, Ninth Session, 
.S'tt/'/'ioJl<'llf l1·.'o. 3. 

227 

THIRD COMMIITEE, 587th 
MEETING 

Thursday, 18 lVovember 191>4, 
at 10.55 a.m. 

New York 

of older women workers, and had made proposals \vhich 
the VSSR delegation had supported. However, the 
USSR delegation felt that the social security and voca· 
tional and technical training of women had not been 
given enough attention. A large number of documents 
on discrimination against women in private law had 
been submitted to the Commission, which had adopted 
several recommendations on the subject. The USSR 
delegation hoped that it would continue its work with 
a view to eliminating all remaining discriminatory meas
ures in that respect. The USSR delegation did not 
approve of the Council's decision (resolution 547 M 
(XVIII)) requesting the Commission on the Status of 
Women to defer consideration of the item ''Protection 
of mother and child" until the results of the Social 
Commission's study of the item were known, That was 
a very important <}uestion and one which the Commis-
sion on the Status of \Vomen had to consider, even if 
there were overlapping between its work and that of the 
Social Commission. She therefore hoped that the Com· 
mission would resume its consideration of the protec
tion of mother and child at once. 

3. VVith regard to the Social Commission\; work, 
the USSR delegation felt that the Commission carried 
out too many studies on theoretical questions or sub
jects of only secondary interest, at the expense of some 
other questions of primary importance, such as 
social security. That situation should be remedied. 
The uSSR delegation attached great importance 
to the question of social security for all employee~. 
It had discussed the question in several Unlted 
Nations organs and had already suhmittt•d specific 
proposals, In th{' USSR. social seL:urity played a 
very important role and continuous progress was being 
made. In 1952, more than 21,000 million rouhles had 
been devoted to the development of social securitv in 
the Soviet Union. Employees made no sociaJ sccUritv 
contribution; that ,..,·as paid in fnH bv cnrerpriscs o~r 
trade unions. \Vithin ten days of its ·establishment, a 
trade union had to register as an insurer. Social secttrit v 
funds were managed by the trade unions, that is. hv th~ 
employees' representatives. In the Soviet Union. dis
abJ:·d employees received from 80 to 100 per cent of 
thea wages. Old-age pensions were paid to all em
ployees. regardless of their state of health, and the 
amount of the pension \Vas calculated accordinu to the 
number of years of service; a man received a e.pension 
at the age of sixty, after 25 years of service and women 
at fifty-five, after 20 years of service. The pension 
amounted to 50 or 60 per cent of the wages. Those 
who were eligible for a pension rffeived it cycn if theY 
~ontin~~d to wo~k, the pension being paid, in that case, 
m add1t10n to theJr wages. Special pensions were granted 
to ~ersons who could no longer ;.vorl< owlng to accident 
or tllness, and also to partly d1sabled pe.rsons. There 
were also .SJ?ccial pensions for c:e,rtain categories of 
workers, whJch were calculated on the basis of the 
recipienfs seniority: elementary school teachers. for 

A/C.3/SR 587 



228 Gene::al Alllembly-Ninth Se;11ion- Third Committee 

instance, were ent itled to a pe11sion e-1unl to 40 per cent 
of their basic salary. In the Soviet Union, there was no 
discrimination with regard to social s·!Ctlfity. The trade 
unions were working constantly to i nprove the condi
tion of the workers. On the basis of the experience of 
the Soviet U nion in that field, the USSR delegation 
had submitted p roposals to variou:> United Nations 
organs. 
4. Mr. H SIA (China) wished to speak on only two 
questions in chapter I V of the Economic and Social 
Council's report, which were not listed as separate 
agenda items. 
5. In resolution 802 (VIII ), the General Assembly 
had extended the mandate of the U n. ted Nations Chil
dren's F und indefinitely and had stat ed that its activi
tit:s were useful for two reasons-heC3.use they realized 
some of the high objectives of the U:1ited Nations and 
because they created favourable condi tions for the de
velopment of the long-range econom:c and social pro
grammes of the United N ations and the specialized 
agencies. It had also requested the ')ecretary-General 
to ensure effective co-ordination o: U NICEF pro
grammes with those of the U nited Nations and the 
specialized agencies. The Secretary-General 's report on 
programme co-o rdination (E/2601 )" to the Economic 
and Social Council at its eighteenth session had shown 
that co-ordination had been ensured no>t only in over-all 
policy and planning but also in aid to individual projects. 
T here was no duplication: UNICEF provided mainly 
supplies and equipment, and the other agencies technical 
assistance. T he different k inds of ass stance fitted har
moniously into a whole, which prevented dissipation of 
U nited Nations efforts on behalf o: children. T hat 
example also showed that concerted aclion to raise living 
standards in the under-developed co mtries was both 
possible and desirable. The Chinese delegation hoped 
that the Secretary-General would work to ensure the 
continued co-ordination of activitie:;, and that the 
E conomic and Social Council would pay special atten
tion to the question. The General A!.sembly had con
stantly urged UN I CEF to place specid emp hasis on its 
activities in the under-developed an:as. The Chinese 
delegation was happy to note that since: 1950 the under
developed areas had received more th<ln 80 per cent of 
the:: total assistance provided, and that appropriations 
had recently been approved for fi fteen .'\.frican countrie!i 
a nd t~rritories. He hoped that the Unit·!d Nations would 
continue on that pa th, which was the r ight one, so long 
as the areas concerned needed aid. 

6. The United Nations Children's Fund depended on 
voluntary contributions from governr:1ents or private 
donors for its existence. In eight years UNICEF had 
been able to assist millions of mothen and children in 
more than eighty countries and territories. The activi
ties of UN I CEF had gained for the U nited Nations the 
respect and sympathy of all the peoples of the world, 
particularly those oi the under-developed countries, 
which placed great hopes in UNICEF . In those condi
tions, the Governments and non-governmental organi
zations, whose financial support was required, should 
be as generous in the future as they had been in the 
past. 
7. T urning to his second point, he emphasized that 
China, which had been one of the fin t victims of the 
opium scourge, had always taken a S{•ecial interest in 
the intemational control of narcotic dr ugs. As early 

2 Offici<ll Records of tl1r Economic and So ~iCJI Couacil, Eigh
r,·cntlr Susion, .1.mrexr.~, agenda item 9 (b). 

as 1948 the Chinese delegation to the Commission on 
Narcotic Dr·ugs had taken the initiative of submitting 
a proposal to restrict the production of opium to medical 
and scientift<: needs: that proposal had led to the meeting 
of the U nited Nations Opium Conference in ~by 1953. 
1\ lthough the Protocol adopted at the Conference 
( E /NT / 8 )" was not perfect, it was a ti rst step forward. 
Furthennon ·, at its eighteenth session the E conomic and 
Social Council had approved the appointment of a 
rappo rteur to prepare a draft model code anti commen
tary for the application and interpretation of the Protocol 
(Council resolution 548 C (XVIII)) and had designated 
~1r. Charles Vaille to undertake the task. T he Chinese 
delegation wished to congratulate the Commission on 
Narcotic Dmgs, the Permanent Central Opium Board, 
the U n ited Nations D i,•ision of Narcotic l)rugs and tht· 
Governments concerned fo r their joint efforts whirh 
had led to steady progress in recent years, part icularly 
with regard to scientific opium resl:arch. the question of 
the p roduction anrl chewing o f the coca leaf. the control 
of synthetic drugs and the problem of narcotirs addiction. 

8. I n its future work the Com mission on Karcotic 
Drugs would ha ve to concentrate on the pn'paration of 
a single convention and the control of illicit traffic. With 
the Council 's approval (resolution 548 K (XY I H)). 
the Commission had already decided to givt• priority at 
its next session to the daboration of a single convention. 
He would therefore merely stress the urgency of the 
problem of illicit traffic. The situation still ~::ave cause 
for concern. The Council's report (A/2686) showed 
that Governments had reported 1,763 seizmes bctwt·t:n 
I March 195:> an<l 28 February 1954. The position was 
particularly alarming in the Far East where the Com
munist aut horities on the Chinese mainland were en
couraging illici t t raffic in order to obtain foreign cur 
rency and to undern1ine the physical health and moral 
well-being of neighbouring populations. Information 
from many sources showed that pO]Jpy-growing and the 
manufact ure o f narcotics were widespread a nd that the 
Communist authorities had sold hundreds of tons of 
opium. General control measures were in::tdc,quat.e to 
deal with such a problem. There was a need for special 
provisions, for example, to mal<e it vossiblc to a ::.ccrtain 
the origin. of seized opium a nd to prevent opium from 
being moved in and out through neighbouring countries. 
His delegation would unreservedly support any proposal 
for special measures commensurate with the seriou:;ness 
of the position and was confident that a majority of 
members would agree with him. 
9. The CHAIRMAN invited representatives who 
wished to speak on the Economic and Social Council's 
report to submit their names as soon as possible. 

lO. Mr. ROY ( Haiti) did not see why representati\'es 
should be urged to put their names on the list of speakers. 
If there were no speakers on the list afte r a reasonable 
~ilne, the Comm it_tee should pass on to the next agenda 
Item. The Comm1ttee had not set any particular number 
of meetings for the study of the Economic a nd Social 
Council's report. 
11. The CHAIRMAN pointed out that he was not 
urging speakers to submit their names; he merely wanted 
those who wished to speak to put their names on the list 
as soon as possible. Some representatives had expressed 
a desire to speak on Monday, 22 November, and had 
put their names down. He suggested that a date should 

3 See u,~ited Notion,r Opi11m Co11/creuu. Protocol and FiHol 
.·let .rigncd at N ew Vork, 23 June 1953, United Nations Publi
cations Sales l'\n.: 19.iJ.XI.6. 



537th meeting- 18 !'lovember l954 229 

be set for closing the list of speakers, for example 12 
noon on 19 November. The tlme limit for announcing 
the prolosal of draft resolutions or amendtnenbi might 
be fixe< at 6 p.m. on 19 Kovember. 
12. Mr. ROY (Haiti) expressed surprise that some 
representatives had put their names on the list of 
speakers for }.londay, 22 Kovember, whereas there were 
no speakers for 19 November. 
13, The CHAIRMAN said that some representatives 
had put their names on the list of speakers for 19 No
vember ; he had accordingly permitted others to put 
their names dO\\TI on the Jist for 22 Kovember. 

14. Mr. I'AZHWAK (Afghanistan) pointed out that 
the three rcprt>sentatives who had spoken on the Coun · 
cil's report ( A/2686) had not taken any previous, part 
in the Third Committee's work during the session. That 
showed the importance \vhich their delegations attached 
to the it<'m before the Committee. Small delegations had 
not had -:.ime to prepare their statements. lVIany of them 
\\-ere not represented in United Nations organs dealing 
with the questions which were the ::;uhjett of chapters 
IV and V of the Council's report. ln the light of those 
co:1siderations, he asked the Chairman to clelav the 
sct~lng of a tirae limit for dos1ng the list of speakers. 

15. The CIIAIR\li\N stated that f1vc representatives 
were on the Hst o~ speaker~ for 19 November and three 
for 22 1\ovcmber. In view of the Afghan representative\ 
protest, he withdrew his $.Uggestion that the list of 
speakers shonld be closed at 12 noon on 19 1'\ovemher. 

16. :\!iss BERNARDINO (Dominican Republic) 
thought that the Council's report was very important 
and ::;houlcl he discussed. She saggested that the Jist of 
speaJ.:crs shouid be: closed at 6 p.m. on 19 Kovember. 
17. i\Ir. RODRIGCEZ FABHEGAT (l:ruguay) sup
ported the proposaL 
lH. \lr. l'AZH\V,\K (Afghani,tan) pointed out that 
two representathTs had more or les.'J repe-ated the Chair
man·~ suggestion, although the Chairman had ,,.,j~htlrawn 
it. He a:->ked reprcsen1atin~s vrho wi::hcd to fix a tintc 
limit for dosiag the list of speakers to show a :>pirit of 
cv~operation by putting their own muncs down on the 
list. 
19. ~.Jr. AZKOL'L ( Lehanon) did not think that the 
import:1nce of the Coundl's report \Vas the point at 
i~sm·. On the one hand the Chairman wished to save 
the Committee's time whilst on the other hand some 
delegation~. particular]y the smaller ones, wanted to 
havE' time to prepare their statement::;, A:"l a compromise 
he therefore proposed that the list of speakers should tJe 
do:~ed at noon on 22 November; that '-VOuld {:nab]e 
representatives who so desired to prepare their speeches 
on 20 and 21 November. 
20. The CHAIRMAN stated that he would not fix anv 
time limit for closing the list of speakers since some reP· 

Printed in U.S.A. 

resentath·es seemed to think that that would be an en
croachment on their freedom o( speech. He felt, never
theless, that representatives should he in a position to 
say whether or not they wished to put their names dmvn 
to speak. As Vice-Chairman. he preferred to leave it 
to the regular Chairman to decide whether or not a 
time limit should be set for dosing the list of speakers, 

21. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) repeated that in 
his opinion it would be premature to dose the list of 
;;peakcrs. He asked the Chairman whether tht•re were 
any relevant precedents, 
22. Miss BERNARDINO (Dominican Republic) 
thought that the Afghan representative was implying 
that her suggestion was out of order. She had made 
the suggestion in good faith and hoped that the Afghan 
representative's attitude \\'as due to a misunderstanding. 
2.1. Mr. RODRIGUEZ FABREGAT (Uruguay) 
po!ntcd out to the Afghan representative that the 
Dominican representative's suggestion, which he had 
::;upported, was in HO way dc~ign<'d to restrict other 
repre.sentatives' freedom of speech, On the contrary. it!' 
only purpose was to postpone the time limit whkh the 
Chainnan had proposed for dosing the list of sprakers. 

24. The CliAIRMAN informed the :\fghan repre
sentative that he \vould not make any inquiry as to 
''"hether there were precedents. He pointed out that in 
the Second Committee the number of meetings to he 
deYoteU. to each agenda item was determined before
hand. The purpose of that practice was not tn curtail 
ireedom of specch. The Committee had to take a de
cision with regard to the Dominican representative's 
suggestion. 
25. :V!r. PAZIIWAK (Afghanistan) explained that he 
had not said that the Dominican representative's state
ment \vas out of order. nor had he ever maintained that 
the Uruguayan representative wished to restrict the 
freedom of speech of other representatives. He had never 
made any such accusation against any deleg-ation. 
26. The CHAIRMAN pointed ""t to the AH1an 
representative that the Dorninican representative b had 
not g~ven the term "out of order" its strict procedural 
meanmg. 
27. !Yfiss BERNAHDl?\0 (Dominican Republic) cn
<lorsl'd the Chairman's interpretation of her remarks. 
28. The CHAIR:V!AN repeated that he would leave it 
to th(' regular Chairman of the Committee to dE'cicle 
whether a (late should he set for closing the list of 
speakers. 
29. M", FO\!INA {l.:nion of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) suggested that the meeting should he adiourncd 
if no r<:>presentaiive \Vished to speak on the ite1~ hdore 
the Committee. 

It zms so decided. 
The meeting rose at 12.15 p.m. 

S-42051-Decen'.her 1954-1,850 




